
265 
East Bellevue Community Council 

Summary Minutes of Regular Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October 3, 2006 Lake Hills Community Clubhouse 
6:30 p.m. Bellevue, Washington 
 
 
PRESENT: Chair Bell, Vice Chair Seal, and Councilmember Eder  
  
ABSENT: [Two positions are currently vacant.] 
 
STAFF: Nicholas Matz, Planning and Community Development 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. with Chair Bell presiding. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call by the Clerk Pro Tempore, all Councilmembers were present.  Chair Bell led the 
flag salute. 
 
3. COMMUNICATIONS - WRITTEN AND ORAL 
 
  (a) East Bellevue Community Council Vacancies 
 
Chair Bell noted two vacancies on the Council with the recent resignations of both Mr. Keeffe 
and Mr. Penrose.  Mr. Bell read Mr. Keeffe’s letter announcing his resignation effective the end 
of September 2006.  The two candidates for the open positions are Ross Gooding and Steve 
Kasner.  The Council previously considered the candidates for Mr. Penrose’s position but did not 
reach a majority vote.   
 
Mr. Bell noted that with three current Councilmembers, a majority vote of two votes is sufficient 
for appointing a member.   
 
Chair Bell opened the floor to nominations for Position 3.  
 
 



266 
East Bellevue Community Council 
Summary Minutes  October 3, 2006 
 
 
Mr. Eder moved to appoint Steve Kasner to Position 3 on the East Bellevue Community Council.  
Mr. Seal seconded the motion, which carried by a vote of 3-0. 
 
Chair Bell opened the floor to nominations for Position 5. 
 
Mr. Seal moved to appoint Ross Gooding to Position 5 on the East Bellevue Community 
Council.  Mr. Eder seconded the motion, which carried by a vote of 3-0. 
 
Chair Bell declared a short break to install Mr. Kasner as Councilmember. 
 
The Clerk Pro Tempore administered the oath of office to Mr. Kasner.  [Mr. Gooding was not  
present.] 
 
The meeting resumed at 6:42 p.m.   
 
Chair Bell welcomed Mr. Kasner, who took a seat at the Council table. 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mr. Eder added Agenda Item 10(b), Lake Hills Shopping Center, as a placeholder agenda item.  
 
Mr. Eder moved to approve the agenda, as amended.  Mr. Kasner seconded the motion, which 
carried by a vote of 4-0. 
 
5. COURTESY PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 (a) Hancock/Muren Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
 
Chair Bell explained that a courtesy public hearing provides an early opportunity for the 
Community Council and the public to be briefed on upcoming land use matters.  The Council 
and the public are invited to provide input to the Planning Commission as they work toward a 
recommendation for the City Council. 
 
Nicholas Matz, Senior Planner, explained that the Hancock/Muren Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment (CPA) is one of four site-specific CPAs proposed this year.  He introduced Mr. 
Hancock and Mr. Muren present in the audience.   
 
Mr. Matz said the CPA will be discussed by the Planning Commission in November.  He noted 
that the memo on page 3 of the meeting packet should refer to the East Bellevue Subarea instead 
of the Southeast Subarea.  The application proposes changing map designations at 1801, 1805, 
1905 and 1911 156th Avenue SE from SF-L (Single Family-Low) to SF-M (Single Family-
Medium) on this four-acre, four-lot site.  If the CPA is adopted, rezoning could allow up to 3.5 
dwelling units per acre.  The site is bordered by both SF-L and SF-H (5 units per acre) zoning. 

 266



267 
East Bellevue Community Council 

Summary Minutes – October 3, 2006 

 
Chair Bell opened the public hearing. No one came forward to comment. 
 
Mr. Eder moved to close the public hearing.  Mr. Seal seconded the motion, which carried by a 
vote of 4-0. 
 
Responding to Mr. Seal, Mr. Matz said approximately one-third of the northern most lot contains 
wetlands.  Mr. Matz noted large sewer lines under the site as well.  In further response, Mr. Matz 
said the applicant submitted a separate letter asking the City to vacate the SE 18th Street trail 
easement.   
 
Responding to Mr. Eder, Mr. Matz clarified that the CPA represents a legislative action to amend 
the Comprehensive Plan.  It affects the potential overall density of the site, but does not represent 
a permit for any development at that point.  In further response, Mr. Matz said the CPA process 
is starting now in order to allow full review and adoption of all CPA proposals by the end of the 
year.   
 
Responding to Mr. Kasner, Mr. Matz said each parcel now has a house on it.  The City has not 
received a subdivision application at this time and cannot accept any applications unless and 
until the CPA is approved.  If redevelopment occurs, it is likely the current houses will be 
removed and replaced with different housing units.   
 
Mr. Matz said staff has not yet formulated a recommendation regarding the CPA for the Planning 
Commission.  He speculated that staff will support the proposal. However, staff has concerns 
about the trail easement, wetlands, and the potential intensity of future development.   
 
Mr. Seal questioned the safety of cars backing out onto 156th Avenue and whether the City could 
regulate this type of access.  Mr. Matz said the City cannot dictate that access not involve 
backing out, but the City can encourage access that is as safe as possible. 
 
Mr. Hancock noted that the applicants are seeking zoning of R-3.5  (3.5 units per acre), in 
contrast to surrounding zoning of R-5.  Responding to Mr. Bell, he said there are four houses and 
two driveways currently on the site. 
 
Responding to Mr. Bell, Mr. Hancock said the four lots were platted by King County at least 
more than 27 years ago.   
 
Responding to Mr. Bell, Mr. Matz said the CPA presents an opportunity to increase the density 
of a low density area, which is beneficial in providing housing as long as the environment is 
protected.  In further response, Mr. Matz clarified that staff is careful to not adopt CPAs just to 
add housing.  The City is meeting its housing targets to remain consistent with the state Growth 
Management Act.  Mr. Matz feels, however, that the proposal presents no adverse impacts to the 
neighborhood. 
 

 267



268 
East Bellevue Community Council 
Summary Minutes  October 3, 2006 
 
Chair Bell commented that the proposal appears to be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan in 
terms of compatibility with adjacent land uses.   
 
Responding to Mr. Bell, Mr. Matz said new critical areas regulations could affect the density of 
development on the site.  However, he does not think the wetland is large enough for it to be 
treated substantially different than under current regulations.  Mr. Muren noted that the large 
sewer line runs primarily under the wetland.   
 
Responding to Mr. Bell, Mr. Matz said if the CPA is approved, density on the site could be 2.5 or 
3.5 units per acre.  Staff is using the potentially most intense level of density, 3.5, in its analysis 
at this point.   
 
Mr. Hancock explained that he plans to sell the land because the taxes have become a burden. 
This CPA will protect against possible future requests for higher density development. 
 
Responding to Mr. Bell, Mr. Matz said the applicants have submitted a rezone application, but 
this will not be reviewed or addressed by the City until and unless the CPA is approved. 
 
Chair Bell commented that the proposal appears to be consistent with all six CPA criteria. 
 
Following additional questions of clarification, Chair Bell noted general Council support for the 
proposal. 
 
Mr. Kasner asked staff to convey to the Planning Commission the Council’s concerns regarding 
the wetland and access to the pedestrian trail easement.   
 
Chair Bell thanked staff and the applicants for their participation. 
 
6. RESOLUTIONS 
 
Chair Bell suggested preparing a resolution recognizing and commending Mr. Keeffe’s extensive 
public service in Bellevue. 
 
7. REPORTS OF CITY COUNCIL, BOARDS, AND COMMISSIONS:  None. 
 
8. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 
 (a) Robinswood Synthetic Fields Update  
 
Chair Bell referred Council to the memo from staff on page 7 of the meeting packet providing an 
update on the Robinswood synthetic fields project.  The project is partially funded and additional 
funds will be requested for the 2007-2008 budget cycle. 
 
9. COMMITTEE REPORTS:  None. 

 268



269 
East Bellevue Community Council 

Summary Minutes – October 3, 2006 

 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 (a) SE 18th Street Trail  [Placeholder agenda item]  
 
Mr. Kasner asked staff to communicate the Community Council’s concerns regarding the 
Hancock/Muren request that the City vacate the SE 18th Street trail easement.  He would like 
future discussions to continue to emphasize the Council’s commitment to providing and 
protecting pedestrian walkways.  Mr. Kasner suggested adding pedestrian connections as an 
agenda item under 11, New Business, for the next meeting.   
 
 (b) Lake Hills Shopping Center  [Placeholder agenda item]  
 
Chair Bell said the Council has still never seen the final agreement regarding the rezone of the 
Lake Hills Shopping Center.   
 
11. NEW BUSINESS:  None. 
 
12. CONTINUED COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Mr. Seal requested adding an agenda item within Section 11 regarding underground mineral 
rights throughout Bellevue. 
 
Mr. Eder said he is waiting for information from a professional regarding best available science, 
and he will then draft a letter to City staff.  He also requested the status of his concern about 
ADA accessibility to City facilities.   
 
Chair Bell said the November meeting will occur on Wednesday, November 8, because election 
day is Tuesday, November 7, which would be the regularly scheduled meeting date. 
 
Mr. Bell asked the Clerk to send a packet of information to the new Councilmembers and to add 
their photo and biographical information to the City’s web site.   
 
Mr. Kasner thanked the Council for the opportunity to serve.  He strongly supports presenting a 
commendation for Mr. Keeffe’s longstanding service.   
 
13. EXECUTIVE SESSION:  None. 
 
14. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Mr. Seal moved to approve the Summary Minutes of the September 5, 2006 meeting.  Mr. Eder 
seconded the motion, which carried by a vote of 4-0. 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 

 269



270 
East Bellevue Community Council 
Summary Minutes  October 3, 2006 
 
 
Mr. Kasner moved to adjourn the meeting, and Mr. Eder seconded the motion.  The motion to 
adjourn carried by a vote of 4-0. 
 
 
At 7:57 p.m., Chair Bell declared the meeting adjourned. 
 
 
 
Kelly Wilson 
Clerk Pro Tempore 
 
/kaw 

 270


	East Bellevue Community Council 

